
AGENDA PAPERS FOR
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

Date:  Monday, 10 August 2015

Time:  10.00 a.m.

Place:  Committee Rooms 2 and 3, 
Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford M32 0TH

A G E N D A  PART I Pages 

1. ATTENDANCES  

To note attendances, including Officers and any apologies for absence.

2. MINUTES  

To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 22 June 2015. 1 - 2

3. PROPOSED DISCIPLINARY AND DISMISSAL PROCEDURE FOR THE 
HEAD OF PAID SERVICE, MONITORING OFFICER AND SECTION 151 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (STATUTORY OFFICERS)  

To consider a report from the Acting Head of Human Resources. 3 - 10

4. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

Any other item or items which, by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified), the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be 
considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

THERESA GRANT
Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



Employment Committee - Monday, 10 August 2015

Membership of the Committee

Councillors B. Rigby (Chairman), Mrs. P. Dixon (Vice-Chairman), J. Bennett, 
M. Cawdrey, N. Evans, C. Hynes and D. Jarman.

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Alexander Murray, Democratic and Scrutiny Officer
Tel: 0161 912 4250
Email: alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk 

This agenda was issued on Friday, 31 July 2015 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford 
M32 0TH.

Any person wishing to photograph,film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to 
inform Democratic Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the 
meeting.

Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if 
you intend to do this or have any queries. 



1

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE

22 JUNE 2015

PRESENT 

Councillors Mrs. P. Dixon (Vice-Chairman), J. Bennett, M. Cawdrey, N. Evans and 
D. Jarman and B. Rigby (in the Chair).

In attendance

Lisa Hooley Acting Director of HR
Habib Khan Head of Legal (Community)
Alexander Murray Democratic and Scrutiny Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C. Hynes

1. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 2015/16, INCLUDING CHAIRMAN, VICE-
CHAIRMAN AND OPPOSITION SPOKESPERSON 

RESOLVED: The Committee notes the Membership of the Committee for the 
2015/16 Municipal Year including the appointments of Chairman, Vice Chairman 
and Opposition Spokesperson namely: 

Councillors Joanne Bennett, Mark Cawdrey, Mrs. Pamela Dixon (Vice-Chairman), 
Nathan Evans, Catherine Hynes (Opposition Spokesperson), David Jarman and 
Brian Rigby (Chairman) 

2. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

RESOLVED: That the terms of reference be noted.

3. MINUTES 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2015 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

4. AGENCY SPEND FOR PERIOD 1ST APRIL 2014 TO 31ST MARCH 2015 

The Acting Director of Human Resources presented a report to the committee 
detailing the levels of spend on agency staff within the council during the Municipal 
Year 2014/15. The report included a breakdown of spend by directorate and the 
reasons for the levels of spend were explained to the Committee. 

The Acting Director of HR explained how the council is working to reduce agency 
spend. The plans include the creation of a peripatetic children’s social worker 
team and the establishment of standardised agency social worker pay rates as 
part of a trial collaboration across the majority of AGMA and its associate 
authorities.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Employment Committee 
22 June 2015

2

The Committee requested a further breakdown of agency spend showing the 
number of individual agency assignments to which the spend related.

RESOLVED: 1) That the report be noted and;
2) A further breakdown of agency spend be provided to the 
committee.
3) Agency spend to be a regular agenda item.

5. STAFF ENGAGEMENT AND SUPPORT 

The Acting Director of Human Resources presented a report which provided an 
update on workforce activities to support, develop, engage and communicate with 
Trafford Council’s workforce to ensure that quality services continue to be 
delivered to Trafford residents and customers.

The committee noted the excellent record of apprentices within Trafford Council, 
with over half of those who have completed their apprenticeship having gained 
permanent employment. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

6. EXEMPTIONS TO THE SICKNESS POLICY - 2014/15 YEAR END POSITION 

The Committee received a verbal update from the Acting Director of HR regarding 
the sickness exemptions for the Municipal Year 2014/15. 

The Committee were informed that over the course of the year 8 cases for 
exemption were considered with 4 approved and 4 not approved. The 4 approved 
cases were all granted based on a range of factors, including the medical 
evidence presented. 

The meeting commenced at 10.15 am and finished at 10.55 am

Page 2



TRAFFORD COUNCIL

Report to: Employment Committee
Date: 10th August 2015
Report for: Approval
Report of:  Lisa Hooley, Acting Director of HR 

Report Title

Proposed Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for the Head of Paid Service, 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Chief Finance Officer (Statutory Officers)

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that Employment Committee:

1. Approves the proposed Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Statutory 
Officers.

Background Information

Relationship to Corporate Priorities N/A
Financial None 
Legal Implications This change is as a result of a regulatory 

amendment and its compliance is therefore 
required by statute

Equality/Diversity Implications None
Sustainability Implications None
Staffing/E-Government/Asset 
Management Implications

Whilst the statutory amendments will be 
automatically incorporated into employment 
contracts, consultation on the revised process has 
been undertaken with officers directly affected by 
the changes, in line with routine Council 
procedures.   

Risk Management Implications The risk associated with this matter relates to non-
compliance from a legal perspective, as referred 
to above.

Health and Safety Implications None

1.0 Background and Context

1.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Order) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015 came into force on 11th May 2015.

1.2 These Regulations introduce significant changes regarding the dismissal of 
statutory officers of a Council i.e. the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151); sometimes referred to as 
the ‘protected officers’.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



1.3 Further to a report to 15th July 2015 Council, which detailed the key changes 
(attached at Appendix 1 for reference) under the amended regulations, the 
Council’s Standing Orders and Constitution have been revised to reflect the 
changes. 

1.4 A draft Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Statutory Officers, which sets 
out the high-level process / principles, was developed in line with these 
amended regulations and a period of consultation has taken place with the 
‘protected officers’.

1.5 Further to the consideration and incorporation of their feedback, a proposed, 
final Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Statutory Officers is attached at 
Appendix 2, for review and approval at Employment Committee.

2.0 Conclusion and Recommendations

2.1 Employment Committee is recommended to approve the proposed Disciplinary 
and Dismissal Procedure for Statutory Officers (at Appendix 2).

Page 4



Appendix 1

Key Changes under the Amended Regulations

 Under the previous Regulations, local authorities were required to appoint a 
designated independent person ("DIP") to investigate all allegations of 
misconduct involving statutory officers, before any disciplinary action could be 
taken; furthermore, any decision to dismiss the Head of Paid Service had to be 
taken by full Council, 

 In 2013, the DCLG commenced consultation on the removal of the DIP process 
on the basis that it was bureaucratic and time-consuming.

 Following on from the consultation, a set of amended Regulations were 
published at the end of March 2015; these Regulations removed the 
requirement for a DIP to be appointed and instead established a new procedure 
for dismissing statutory officers. 

 This new procedure essentially extends the requirement for full Council to take 
the decision to dismiss any of the statutory officers (i.e. it is no longer limited to 
the Head of Paid Service) and most importantly, sets out a requirement that this 
decision must be taken following consideration of recommendations made by a 
relevant ‘Panel’, which includes Independent Persons (IPs).

 The Regulations provide that this ‘Panel’ should be ‘a committee appointed by 
the authority under section 102(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 for the 
purposes of advising the authority on matters relating to the dismissal of 
relevant officers of the authority’; this committee would be subject to the usual 
legal requirements for proportionality and must comprise ‘at least two’ IPs. 

 These IPs must be appointed under the provisions of section 28(7) of the 
Localism Act 2011 (established for the purposes of the ‘member conduct’ 
regime) and must not be remunerated at a higher level than that which they 
would have been in undertaking their role as an Independent Person in the 
conduct regime. This is to ensure that the new process incurs minimal cost. 

Page 5



Appendix 2

Trafford Council

Proposed Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Head of Paid Service, 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Chief Finance Officer

It is proposed that the Council adopts a procedure as provided for in the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015, as follows:

1. Where an allegation of potential misconduct is made against the Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer (the ‘protected officers’), then 
the Leader of the Council, in conjunction with the Director of HR (and Head of Paid 
Service, where the allegation is not related to them) will consider whether the 
issues require investigation and, where this is the case, determine the most 
appropriate person to conduct the investigatory process.

2. This will ordinarily be an external, independent investigator, with the relevant 
background, skill set and experience to conduct investigations of this nature. The 
independent investigator will undertake their investigation in accordance with the 
ACAS Code of Practice.

3. The Leader of the Council, Head of Paid Service (where appropriate) and the 
Director of HR, will consider whether suspension is appropriate or whether there 
are any other suitable alternative ways of managing the situation.  Where 
suspension is deemed appropriate, the Director of HR will ensure that agreed 
suspension protocols are followed.

4. The findings from the investigation will be presented to a Panel; this Panel must 
consist of a least 2 independent persons, who must be drawn from those 
appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.  In addition, the Panel will 
comprise of Elected Members who will ordinarily be members of the Employment 
Committee and will be politically balanced in line with the rules of proportionality.  
The Panel will be advised by the Director of HR (or their representative).

5. The ‘protected officers’ are entitled to make personal representations to the Panel 
and have the right to be accompanied by their Trade Union representative or a 
work colleague if they so wish.

6. The Panel will consider the conclusions of the investigation and any 
representations from the protected officer concerned.

7. Where it is considered by the Panel that no action or action short of dismissal 
should take place, then the Panel can progress in confirming the outcome of the 
Panel meeting and there is no requirement to put the matter forward for an 
authority vote.

8. Where the Panel determines that action short of dismissal is the appropriate 
sanction, the protected officer has the right of appeal to a politically-balanced 
Appeals Committee ordinarily made up of members of the Employment 

Page 6



Committee, who were not involved in the Panel meeting.  The appeal hearing will 
take the form of a review of the case and the decision that was taken by the Panel. 
The protected officer will be invited to make their verbal/written representations to 
the Appeals Committee for consideration. Where the protected officer chooses to 
present verbally, representatives from the Panel will also be in attendance. The 
Appeals Committee will be advised by the Director of HR (or their representative). 
All relevant parties will be provided with the relevant documentation in advance of 
the Appeals Committee.

9. Where the proposal is to dismiss, the Executive Objections Procedure will be 
followed prior to the matter going forward to full Council.

10. On receipt of any objections, it is for the Panel to decide whether they are material 
and well-founded.  If they are, then the Panel will need to consider the effect of the 
objection and act accordingly.  For example, this may require further investigation.

11.Where there are no objections or any objection is deemed as not material or well-
founded, the matter will then be considered at full Council, who will vote at a 
meeting on whether to approve the proposal to dismiss. There must be an 
interlude of at least 20 working days between the full Council meeting and the date 
of the original Panel meeting.

12.At their meeting, full Council will consider the original investigation report and the 
recommendations of the Panel, along with any verbal/written representation from 
the protected officer. Where the protected officer chooses to present verbally, 
representatives from the Panel will also be in attendance.  All relevant parties will 
be provided with the relevant documentation in advance of full Council.

13.The decision of Council will be by way of a majority vote and will be final.

14.Where a decision to dismiss is approved by Council, then the protected officer has 
no further right of appeal. 

15. It is in the interests of all parties that the process should be conducted 
expeditiously, but fairly and that any delays in the procedure are avoided, 
wherever possible.

16. This process will also be adopted in cases where there are issues in relation to 
capability, which are not resolved through the provision of additional guidance, 
training, development and support.

Page 7



‘Protected Officers’ Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure Flowchart
The following flowchart provides a summary of the proposed procedure:

Initial Action
The Leader of the Council, Head of Paid Service (where 

appropriate) and the Director of HR appoints an 
independent investigator 

Panel Hearing
A Panel, comprising of 2 independent persons, together 
with Elected Members who will ordinarily be members of 
the Employment Committee and the Director of HR (or 
their representative in an advisory capacity), hears the 

case, including representations from the protected officer 

Council votes on whether or not to dismiss (majority 
vote) and their decision will be final.

The independent investigator undertakes an investigation 
in line with ACAS Code of Practice and produces a report 

with detailed findings

Any recommendation on no action or action short of 
dismissal can be confirmed by the Panel without any referral 

to full Council.

Appeals Committee
The protected officer has a right of appeal against a 
sanction of action short of dismissal to an Appeals 

Committee ordinarily made up of Employment Committee 
members who were not involved in the Panel meeting.  The 

Appeals Committee will review the case and the decision 
made, together with verbal/written representation from the 

protected officer and the Panel.

Page 8



Full Council
 Where the proposal is to dismiss, full Council considers 

all written documentation relating to the case for 
dismissal, including the advice, views and 

recommendation from the Panel, together with 
verbal/written representation from the protected officer 
and the Panel. An interlude is required of at least 20 

working days between the original Panel meeting and 
the full Council meeting.

Executive Objections Procedure

Where the proposal is to dismiss, the Executive Objections 
Procedure will be followed before the proposal being 

considered by Council

Under the Executive Objections 
Procedure, members of the 

Executive have a chance to object 
to the proposed dismissal.  

If there are no objections or it is 
deemed that any objection is not 
material or well-founded, then the 
proposal to dismiss can proceed.

It is for the Panel to decide whether 
any objections are material and 
well-founded.  If they are, then the 
Panel will need to consider the 
effect of the objection and act 
accordingly.  For example, this may 
require further investigation.

Council votes on whether or not to dismiss (majority 
vote) and their decision will be final.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	Minutes

	3 PROPOSED DISCIPLINARY AND DISMISSAL PROCEDURE FOR THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE, MONITORING OFFICER AND SECTION 151 CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (STATUTORY OFFICERS)

